
FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA -- 1/11/2022 at 8:30 AM 
1504 3rd Ave Rock Island, IL – County Building, Third Floor Chambers 

The Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission will meet at the above date and time in 
County Board Chambers on the third floor of the County Building, 1504 Third Ave, Rock Island, IL. 
Per section 7(e) of the State of Illinois Open Meetings Act, Members of the County Board may 
attend the meeting remotely, if they prefer. To attend the meeting by Zoom dial 312-626-6799 and entering Meeting 
ID: 949 386 328 when prompted. 

I. Roll Call:

II. Old Business:  Executive Committee minutes from December 14, 2021* pg 2

III. Claims:*
Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $73,922.02 pg 17 
Marvin Martin Fund claims @ $3,222.78 pg 30

Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $60,220.03 pg 7
Liability Fund claims @ $1,688.00 pg 29
Treasurer’s Disbursements $1,569.28 pg 31

Claims and Treasurer’s Disbursements totaling $140,622.11 

IV. Transfers:
Consider Transfers of Appropriations in the General Fund* pg 32

V. Resolutions:
Consider a resolution regarding the semi-annual review of closed session minutes* pg 33

VI. Ordinances:

VII. Public comment:

VIII   Other Business: 

Other business as needed 

IX. Reports:   Approval of all routine reports:
District Budget Performance Report* pg 35
April Palmer – Auditor’s Reports* pg 56
Mike Petersen - Illiniwek report* pg 66
Lee Jackson – Niabi Zoo report * pg 69

Louisa Ewert – Treasurer’s Report* pg 48
Todd Collins pg 62 & Jay Verstraete pg 65 – Indian Bluff Reports* 
Ben Mills – Loud Thunder report* pg 67
Jeff Craver – Director’s report* pg 76

The Forest Preserve Executive Committee may enter a Closed Session for the following: 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) – The appointment employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific 
employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged 
against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for the public body to determine its validity.  
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their representatives, 
or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (5)-Discussion of the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings 
held for the purpose of discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 

* items are in members’ packets

The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee will be held at Rock Island County Building,
Rock Island, Illinois on Tuesday, February 8th at 8:30 AM. 

01



December 14, 2021 Page 1 

FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

DECEMBER 14, 2021 
 
                  
PRESENT: Committee members - K. Swanson, E. Sowards, D. Cremeens, A. 
Normoyle, L. Moreno(via Zoom), R. Simmer. 
 
ABSENT: J. Woods. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Jeff Craver, District Director; Lee Jackson, Zoo Director; April 
Palmer, Auditor(via zoom); Louisa Ewert, Treasurer; Kurt Davis, Information Systems 
Director. 
 
President Swanson called the monthly meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive 
Committee to order at 8:33 AM on Tuesday, December 14, 2021, in the third floor 
chambers at the Rock Island County Building in Rock Island, Illinois. 
 
K. Swanson, D. Cremeens, A. Normoyle, L. Moreno, E. Sowards. (R. Simmer arrived 
after roll was called{8:36am}) 
TOTAL PRESENT 6 
J. Woods. 
TOTAL ABSENT 1 

 
President Swanson called for a motion approving the November Committee meeting 
minutes. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Cremeens moved to approve the November Committee meeting minutes. 
Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Roll was called: 
K. Swanson, D. Cremeens, A. Normoyle, L. Moreno, E. Sowards. 
TOTAL YES  5 

TOTAL NO  0 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the claims and treasurer’s 
disbursements in the amount of $744,808.45. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Sowards moved to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in 
the amount of $744,808.45. Ms. Normoyle seconded the motion. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Sowards moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Normoyle seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 

02



December 14, 2021 Page 2 

 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the transfers of appropriation in the 
General Fund. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to approve the transfers of appropriation in the General 
Fund. Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to adopt the previous roll call. Mr. Cremeens seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the Resolutions pertaining to the 
Niabi Zoo Appropriations Amendments-Rhino Yard Project. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to approve the Resolutions pertaining to the Niabi Zoo 
Fund Appropriations Amendments-Rhino Yard Project. Ms. Sowards seconded the 
motion. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Cremeens moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Normoyle seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the resolution regarding the 
Designation of Banks and Other Depositories. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the resolution regarding the Designation of 
Banks and Other Depositories. Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Roll was called: 
K. Swanson, D. Cremeens, A. Normoyle, L. Moreno, E. Sowards, R. Simmer. 
TOTAL YES  6 

TOTAL NO  0 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson asked if anyone wished to make public comment. 
 
There were no requests for public comment. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the regular 2022 meeting dates and 
holidays. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the regular 2022 meeting dates and holidays. 
Ms. Normoyle seconded the motion. 

03



December 14, 2021 Page 3 

 
MOTION: Mr. Cremeens moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Normoyle seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the 
District’s FOIA Officer for calendar year 2022. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to approve Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the District’s 
FOIA Officer for calendar year 2022. Dr. Simmer seconded the motion. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Sowards seconded the 
motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the 2022 fee schedule of the District 
facilities and services. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the 2022 fee schedule of the District facilities 
and services. Mr. Cremeens seconded the motion. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to adopt the previous roll call. Mr. Cremeens seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the low bid for Niabi Zoo Rhino Yard 
Project. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the low bid for Niabi Zoo Rhino Yard Project. 
Ms. Normoyle seconded the motion. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Cremeens moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Normoyle seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the Tyler Technologies quote for 
additional Financial Software and Maintenance. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to approve the Tyler Technologies quote for additional 
Financial Software and Maintenance. Dr. Simmer seconded the motion. 
 

04



December 14, 2021 Page 4 

Mr. Craver stated that the software in this quote builds on the existing financial 
software. The e-suit base is what the District will need to run the e-employee and e-
timesheets. At this point in time the District is only looking to add in the e-employee 
option, and will be evaluating the need for the e-timesheet in future. At Niabi and Indian 
Bluff there is an electric time and attendance system, but that is getting to be outdated. 
The e-employee package will allow the District to send out paystubs and W-2s 
electronically. It will also allow communication between the employee and employer to 
be accomplished easier. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Sowards moved to adopt the previous roll call. seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the Conservation Fund Recipient 
Agreement-Enbridge Flanagan South Pipeline Project. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the Conservation Fund Recipient Agreement-
Enbridge Flanagan South Pipeline Project. Ms. Sowards seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that this is the additional $75,000.00 to be put toward the purchase of 
properties in East Moline. The agreement included in the packet is a draft, but is not 
expected to have any material changes in the final draft. 
 
Ms. Normoyle asked if this is simply another grant. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that the Flanagan Pipeline Mitigation Funds were passed through to 
the Conservation Fund, so the agreement is actually with the Conservation Fund. The 
Flanagan Pipeline Mitigation Fund is just the account fund that they got from a 
mitigation project. I believe the funds were more to include bat habitat. When they built 
that pipeline it must have significantly impacted some bat habitat/created migratory 
issues. So that money went to the Conservation Fund, and the Conservation Fund 
works closely with the Fish and Wildlife Service. There was a concurrence from the Fish 
and Wildlife Service to give the District those funds. Can see in the agreement that Mr. 
Petersen wrote up a forest management/stewardship plan that includes steps to make it 
especially appealing for bat habitats. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Normoyle moved to adopt the previous roll call. Dr. Simmer seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson asked the Committee members if anyone had any questions 
regarding the routine reports of the District, or if anyone wished to bring attention to 
something from their report. 
 

05



December 14, 2021 Page 5 

Ms. Ewert stated that there was one thing the Committee needed to be aware of in 
relation to tax assessment appeals. There should be more information next month, but 
this is what is known at the moment. There was a Property Tax Appeal Board decision 
made recently regarding thirteen parcels out in the Cordova area for Minnesota Mining 
Manufacturing covering 2017 through 2019, and the 2020 decision should be coming 
soon. The decision lowered the assessed value of some of the properties. That means 
the taxes collected during those years was too high, and the taxpayer is due a refund. 
The total is close to $350,000.00, of which only a fraction is due from the District. Will 
keep the District informed as more information becomes available. 
 
Ms. Palmer informed the Committee that the Audit would be ready for the Commission 
meeting next week. 
 
Mr. Jackson informed the Committee that the Painted Dog Online Auction had 
concluded, and it brought in around $9,000.00. There will be a review of the master 
Plan coming up in August. A review is done every five years until the plan is complete. 
Commission members are welcome in that process. 
 
Ms. Normoyle asked Mr. Jackson what the events listed on the schedule as “Sensory 
Inclusion Dates” were. 
 
Mr. Jackson stated that those are on the schedule to further Niabi’s efforts to be an 
inclusive institution. Some in the Neuro-Diverse community have sensory processing 
difficulties, and those days will be more accommodating to that community. 
 
Mr. Craver stated that Indian Bluff Golf Course is open today. The standard winter 
maintenance and forest management projects are keeping staff busy. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the routine reports of the District 
Department heads. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Sowards moved to approve the routine reports of the District Department 
heads. Mr. Cremeens seconded the motion. 
 
MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Normoyle seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called the meeting adjourned at 9:07 AM. 
 
Submitted by:  
Cassie Sullivan 
Forest Preserve Administrative Assistant 

06



07



08



09



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 Resolution  
 Rock Island County Forest Preserve District 
 Re: Open Meetings Act Review of Minutes of a Meeting Lawfully Closed  
 

WHEREAS, the Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission strictly adheres to all 
provisions of the Open Meetings Act as defined in 5 ILCS 120; and 
 

WHEREAS, 5 ILCS 120/2.06(c), calls for periodic review of minutes of meetings lawfully 
closed to determine if the need for confidentiality still exists as to all or part of these minutes or 
that the minutes or portions therefor no longer require confidential treatment and are available 
for public inspection; and 
 

WHEREAS, during regular committee meetings held during the month of January, 2020; 
Rock Island County Forest Preserve has reviewed minutes of closed meetings for all previously 
held closed sessions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following meeting minutes have been 
determined to contain matters where the need for confidentiality still exists: 
 

Date of Meeting     Reason for Closed Session 
 08-08-1986      Personnel 
 12-05-1986      Personnel 
 02-08-1991      Personnel & Potential Liability 
 07-10-1992      Personnel 
 02-05-1993      Investments contracts 
 05-07-1993      Personnel 
 08-15-1995      Personnel 
 08-05-2005      Litigation 
 09-30-2010      Personnel 
 10-08-2010      Personnel 
 12-03-2010      Personnel 
 03-04-2011      Personnel 
 04-05-2012      Personnel 
 06-05-2012      Personnel 
 06-07-2012      Personnel 
 06-08-2012      Personnel 
 06-27-2012      Personnel 
 06-28-2012      Personnel 
 10-15-2012      Litigation & Personnel 
 07-11-2013      Personnel 
 09-12-2013      Litigation 
 11-14-2013      Litigation & Personnel 
 12-12-2013      Litigation & Personnel 
 01-16-2014      Litigation 
 11-13-2014      Personnel 
 02-11-2015      Personnel 

04-16-2015      Personnel 
10-14-2015      Personnel 
11-10-2015      Personnel 
02-16-2016      Potential Litigation 
03-17-2016      Personnel 
04-12-2016      Personnel 

33



06-15-2016      Litigation 
01-10-2017      Litigation 
04-11-2017      Litigation 

 01-09-2018      Personnel 
 11-13-2018      Personnel & Land Acquisition 
 02-11-2020      Personnel 
 12-15-2020      Litigation 
 07-13-2021      Land Acquisition 
 07-20-2021      Land Acquisition 
 10-13-2021      Negotiations 
  

This Resolution to become effective immediately after passage.  Minutes of those meetings 
determined to be made available for public inspection will be released as per the Open Meetings 
Act 5 ILCS 120/2.06(b). 
 
 DONE IN OPEN MEETING THIS 18th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022 
 
 
 
                                                                                                              
Kai Swanson       Karen Kinney 
President, Rock Island County     Secretary, Rock Island County 
Forest Preserve Commission    Forest Preserve Commission 

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



Report to Forest Preserve Committee 

Name of Park __Loud Thunder __ 

For the Month of _December 2021__ 

Grounds Maintenance performed--_ 

 Picked up trash on grounds, removed trash from trash receptacles

 Cleaned pit toilets as needed

 Pruned trees in all areas of the preserve

 Continued to removed hazard trees in Indian Meadow Campground

 Maintained trails

 Finished installation of trail bridge near boyscout camp

 Burned 5 acre prairie and reseeded it at the Ralph Martin Conservation Area

Building Maintenance projects performed--_ 

 Cleaned grease trap in park office

 Dusted and cleaned all wood surfaces in park office

Equipment repairs and/or project performed--_ 

 Preformed pre and post operation checks daily on equipment to be used.

 Installed a new tailgate for 2014 F150

 Replaced spark plug wire and throttle spring on log splitter

 Began winter maintenance on Bobcat T870

o Oil and Filter change

o New seal on door

o Coolant change

Trails/Course/General facility conditions--_The park as a whole is looking great.  Trails were open for 

the majority of the month.  

Vandalism report--_I have no vandalism to report for the month of December 2021. 

Incidents--_Over the Christmas break someone tried to sink a stolen SUV at the public boat ramp.  

Rusty’s Towing pulled the vehicle out of the lake and removed it from the property.  

Accidents reports--_I have no accidents to report for the month of December 2021.  

Weather conditions--_Weather was unseasonably warm and dry for December.    



 

 

 

 

 

 

Activities/Events/Outings held at park--_ The Loud Thunder Archery Hunt is still going on and to date 

the hunters have harvested 32 deer.   

Volunteer Hours—I do not have any volunteer hours to report for the month of December 2021.    

 

December was a productive month here at Loud Thunder.  We have begun to work on equipment 

maintenance in the shop and removal of hazard trees out on the grounds.  Staff took some time off around 

the holidays and we are back to full strength now that the holidays are over.   

 

We have a lot of equipment to perform annual maintenance on and even more to do on the grounds the 

rest of this winter.  Staff will be very busy in the upcoming months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ben Mills Superintendent       1/07/22 

 

 

 



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79




